
Procurement Board 
Dear Member,

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Procurement Board to be held as follows 
for the transaction of the business indicated.
Miranda Carruthers-Watt 
Proper Officer

DATE: Thursday, 9 January 2020

TIME: 10.30 am

VENUE: Members' Conference Room - Salford Civic Centre

In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 
this meeting. 

AGENDA

1  Apologies for absence 

2  Declarations of interest 

3  To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held 
on 4 December 2019 

(Pages 1 - 2)

4  Matters arising 

5  Decision items - Part 1 (open to the public) 

5a Request for Approval - Award of Contract - Greater Manchester 
Archaeology Services 

(Pages 3 - 16)

5b Request to go out to Competition - Appointment of a Managing Agent 
for 2 New Bailey Square 

(Pages 17 - 20)

5c Request for Approval - Award of Contract - Supply of Liquid Fuels (Pages 21 - 26)

5d ITEM DEFERRED TO ALLOW OFFICER ATTENDANCE - Request 
for Approval - Extension of Contract - 0-19 Integrated Children's 
Health Service 

6  Any other business - Part 1 (open to the public) 

7  Exclusion of the public 

8  Decision items - Part 2 (closed to the public) 

Public Document Pack



8a Insurance Policy & Cover Renewals (Pages 27 - 36)

9  Date and time of next meeting 

10:00am on Wednesday 22 January 2020 in the Boardroom, Civic 
Centre, Salford City Council, Chorley Road, Swinton, M27 5DA.

Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 3316
Carol Eddleston, Senior Democratic Services 
Advisor

E-Mail: carol.eddleston@salford.gov.uk



Page | 1 

PROCUREMENT BOARD

4 December 2019

Meeting commenced: 10:00am
Meeting ended: 10:16am

PRESENT: Councillors Hinds (in the chair) and Merry

IN ATTENDANCE: Becky Bibby Assistant Director – Early Help and School Readiness
Debbie Brown Strategic Director – Service Reform
Steven Fry Assistant Director – Digital & Customer Services
Michael Goddard Assets and School Organisation Officer 
Chris Hesketh Head of Financial Management
Anthony Hilton Head of Strategic Procurement
Kathy Kennedy Project Manager
Craig Monaghan Head of Service School Organisation
Carol Eddleston Democratic Services

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillor Boshell and City Mayor 
Paul Dennett. 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

3. MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

The minutes of the meeting held on 27 November 2019 were approved as a correct 
record.

4. MATTERS ARISING

There were no matters arising.

5. REQUEST FOR APPROVAL – EXCEPTION TO CONTRACTUAL STANDING ORDERS 
– SCHOOLS ICT MANAGED SERVICE CONTRACT

Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director People seeking an exception 
to Contractual Standing Orders to allow a contract to be awarded for Salford Schools ICT 
Managed Service.

It was explained that the report sought approval to award a new contract to the current 
contractor for two years with an optional extension period of a further two years. The 
current contract had been running successfully in Salford Schools since 2016 following a 
mini-competition from a Crown Commercial Services framework for which the council had 
received only two bids. A tendering exercise earlier this year by one of Salford’s Multi 
Academy Trusts had resulted in the same two companies tendering, one of which had 
subsequently gone into administration.

Whilst both these procurement processes might appear to indicate a gap in the market 
place for companies of sufficient size to undertake such a large scale managed services, 
advice from the Legal and Procurement teams was that there still remained a risk of 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Page | 2 

challenge (by an aggrieved supplier) to the direct award of a contract of this value and 
proposed duration. The Board therefore considered that it would be more prudent to 
award the contract for a period of two years, with no optional extension period.

RESOLVED, THAT:

(1) an exception to Contractual Standing Orders be approved for the following reasons: 
the need for the goods, services or works is so urgent that the time needed to comply 
with the rules would be prejudicial to the Council’s interests, specialist 
services/supplies which are available from only one supplier, the Council can 
demonstrate that an integrated or strategic approach to procurement is being 
implemented and there is a requirement to align services or contracts to co-terminus 
end dates, and there are value for money reasons, and

(2) A 24 months’ contract be awarded to RM Education for the provision of the Schools 
ICT Managed Service at an estimated cost per annum of £1.6m.

6. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

RESOLVED, THAT: under Section 100a(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public 
be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on the grounds that IT 
included the likely disclosure of exempt information as specified in the relevant 
paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act.

7. REQUEST FOR APPROVAL – AWARD OF CONTRACT – DATA MIGRATION AND 
IMPLEMENTATION SERVICES FOR THE INTEGRATED ADULTS AND CHILDREN’S 
SOCIAL CARE CASE MANAGEMENT AND INTEGRATED FINANCE SYSTEM

Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director of Service Reform and the 
Strategic Director People seeking approval to award a contract for data migration and 
implementation services aligned with the integrated adults and children’s social care case 
management and integrated finance system.

RESOLVED, THAT: A 16 months’ contract be awarded to ICT Revolutions, for the 
provision of Data Migration and Implementation Services for the Integrated Adults and 
Children’s Social Care Case Management and Integrated Finance System, at a total cost 
of £559,800.

 

Page 2



Sample B – award of contract 

*Part 1 – Open to the Public
ITEM NO.

REPORT OF

The Strategic Director for Place

TO

Procurement Board

ON

8th January 2020

 
TITLE:   Approval to Award the Contract for Greater Manchester Archaeology 
Services

RECOMMENDATION: 

That Procurement Board approve the award of the Contract for Greater Manchester 
Archaeology Services as detailed in the table below, subject to formal confirmation of 
funding from all ten local authorities in Greater Manchester:
 

Detail required
Title/Description of Contracted 

Service/Supply/Project Greater Manchester Archaeology Services

Name of Successful Contractor
                  The University of Salford
Incorporated by Royal Charter – Charity Exempt 

from Registration
Supplier Registration Number

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)
RC000666 

Type of organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Charitable Trust

Status of Organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Non-SME

Contract Value £ 130,000 Per Annum 
(estimated average)

Contract Duration 72 Months
Contract Start Date 01/04/2020
Contract End Date 31/03/2026

Page 3

Agenda Item 5a



Sample B – award of contract 

Optional Extension Period 1 24 months
Optional Extension Period 2 24 months
Optional Extension Period 3 24 months

Who will approve each Extension 
Period? Procurement Board (extension > £150k)

Contact Officer (Name & number) Chris Findley 3654

Lead Service Group Place

How the contract was procured?
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Tender (Open)

Framework Details (where applicable)
(Procurement Body, Framework Reference & 

Title, Start/End Dates, Hyperlink, etc.)

Funding Source External Funding Source (please identify below)

Procured on behalf of the ten authorities each 
authority funding this with £13000 each year

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  
The purpose of this report is to seek approval for the award of the above mentioned 
contract.  The service is to provide archaeological planning advice to, and on behalf 
of, the ten Greater Manchester (GM) local planning authorities. The service is 
commissioned jointly by the 10 Local Planning Authorities (LPAs), with each 
authority making an equal financial contribution.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:

Approval was given by exception to extend current agreement and seek approval to 
advertise and tender the services.  

KEY DECISION:  

Yes  

DETAILS: 

1. Background

The Greater Manchester Archaeological Advisory Service (GMAAS) was established 
in 2012, with the service being provided by Salford University. It succeeds the 
Greater Manchester Archaeological Unit (GMAU) which had provided the service 

Page 4



Sample B – award of contract 

following the demise of the Greater Manchester Council in 1986, and which closed 
following the decision of Manchester University to no longer host the function.  The 
service has provided support to the statutory functions of the Greater Manchester 
local planning authorities, especially in relation to advice on planning applications 
impacting on important archaeology (including potential archaeology).  The service 
provided by GMAAS has been a success and has been delivered to a high standard. 

The purpose of this contract is to ensure that the ten GM LPAs, developers and 
other stakeholders within GM have access to a high quality archaeological planning 
service. 

2. The Procurement Process

An advertisement was placed in the OJEU and the Chest (northwest portal) as an 
open procedure on 18th September 2019.  

After the closing date of 25th October 2019 there were two tenders received.

The contract award criteria were based on 60% quality which included 20% for 
Social Value, and 40% on price. 

The contract will commence on 1st April 2020 and extend to 31st March 2026 with an 
option to extend for a further six years on a two yearly basis which will be subject to 
funding. Any extensions taken will be approved by Procurement Board.

Following the evaluation process the tender submitted by University of Salford, was 
deemed to be the most economically advantageous tender.

Name of Bidder
% Price 
score

Max 40%

% Quality 
score

Max 40%

% Social 
Value 
score

Max 20%

%Overall 
Score
100%

Provider A 40.00% 23.80% 16.00% 79.80%

Provider B 37.04% 33.60% 16.00% 86.64%

 It is recommended that the contract is awarded to the University of Salford 
due to their bid being the Most Economically Advantageous Tender (MEAT) 
i.e. an award to University of Salford which is not the lowest in price but has 
the highest overall score once quality is also taken into account 

3. Assessment 

Page 5



Sample B – award of contract 

Both tenders received were of good quality. One tender was better on price, but the other tender 
was significantly better on overall quality and assurance of being able to deliver the service for
the ten Greater Manchester authorities to the expected standard. 

The quality of the service is largely dependent on the staff resource available. The successful 
tenderer has an existing team, and accommodation in a highly accessible location.

The maintenance and further development of the Historic Environment Record (HER), which the
service hosts on behalf of the ten authorities, is also an important element of the contract. 
We have ambitions that the HER should be accessible to everyone in Greater Manchester,
and including on-line. This is a major project which we would want to encourage the service to 
advance.

Social Value

Social Value is also important , as it has always been, and we are satisfied that the service will 
continue to deliver activities that will support communities in general, and the many people who 
are interested in the history of Greater Manchester’s many places and the people who over the 
centuries lived in the area.  

The Service Coordinates and co-chairs the GM Archaeology Federation, comprising 18 local 
archaeology/heritage societies involving hundreds of members. As part of the Centre for Applied 
Archaeology, GMAAS helps set up and run events for the annual GM Archaeology Festival 
which sees a number of the societies run guided tours, exhibitions, excavations etc for the
benefit of the public.

Each year, at the end of November, GMAAS organises the GM Archaeology Day which attracts 
around 170 participants to the University of Salford to hear about recent archaeology highlights 
from key projects across GM. 
 
Each year, GMAAS staff give a range of lectures on their work and archaeological research 
in GM, to local heritage groups and at conferences/day schools, reaching an audience of 
hundreds of people.

The GM Historic Environment Record Officer responds to enquiries from members of the public, 
researchers, and officials about our local heritage. Several volunteers have helped on inputting
data. A project will be developed to enhance the GM HER so that it can be put into the public 
domain online, enabling the citizens of GM and from further afield to access key records on the
area’s unique archaeology and history. 

Through the development control process GMAAS recommends as part of planning conditions 
the need to disseminate the results of the various developer funded archaeological 
investigations. 

GMAAS vigorously promotes NPPF paragraph 199 to ensure that public benefit arises
from this work. Outcomes depend on the nature and significance of the archaeology but 
might include: guided tours, talks or open days during excavations (eg. New Bailey Prison,
Salford) heritage displays (such as Arkwright’s Mill in Shudehill, for the NOMA development,
Ordsall Chord new railway bridge, or Clowes Street at Dandara’s Chapel Street development

Page 6



Sample B – award of contract 

in Salford).

GMAAS and the Centre for Applied Archaeology worked with Network Rail, TfGM, 
and Northern Rail to produce an exhibition on Salford’s Early Past which occupied the foyer for 
Salford Central for one year, reaching an audience of many thousands. 

GMAAS will continue these activities, which are so important in providing the people of GM with
a sense of history, place, uniqueness and pride in their local environment and its history. 
With its wide range of contacts and support from University colleagues GMAAS is 
able to maximise social impact/value from its work. 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 

List the strategies, plan or programme to which the project/scheme/service or 
purchase of goods specifically relates. 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: 

Provide a short statement of how you have used EIA in designing the specification 
and evaluating the tenders or if one is not required, just indicate not applicable.

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  

Risk relates to the implications if the scheme does not happen or any risk if there is a 
potential delay in making the award.

SOURCE OF FUNDING:   

The Budget that will meet the cost of the scheme. Whilst verbal assurances have 
been given that the Greater Manchester budget will increase to reflect the increased 

Page 7



Sample B – award of contract 

cost of the service, this will not be confirmed formally until later in January 2020. 
Final award of the contract will await the confirmation of funding from the other nine 
GM districts to ensure that Salford’s position is protected.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Tony Hatton, Principal Solicitor, tel. 219 6323

When commissioning contracts for the procurement of goods, services or the 
execution of works, the Council must comply with the provisions of the Public 
Contracts Regulations 2015 as well as its own Contractual Standing Orders (CSO’s), 
Financial Regulations and the duties of Best and Social Value. In addition, the PCR 
require that contracting authorities treat candidates equally and in a non-
discriminatory way and act in a transparent manner, failing which the award of a 
contract may be subject to legal challenge. 

The OJEU (and Chest) advertised procurement procedure undertaken in this matter 
appears robust, and the appointment of the provider for this service follows an open 
tender process which is outlined within the body of the report, and which is compliant 
with the requirements of CSO’s and PCR. Having undertaken the open tender 
exercise in the recommendation will give some comfort to the Council in ensuring 
that value for money is being obtained and periodically tested, with open competition 
maintained.  

Presumably in view of the specialist nature of the services, the award of the contract 
will commit the Council to a six year contract with the University, with the option to 
extend for three further periods of two years each. Legal Services will advise and 
assist in the drafting of any contractual documentation upon receipt of instructions. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Submitted by: Martin Anglesey, Finance Officer x 3248

Budget exists on Cost Centre D4062 6010.

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Submitted by:  Deborah Derbyshire Category 
Manager Place x 6244

An advert was placed in the OJEU and the northwest portal advertising the 
opportunity.  The procurement process is detailed in the report. The procedure 
undertaken is compliant with the Procurement Contracts Regulations and the City 
Councils Contractual Standing Orders.

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: 

List other parts of the organisation consulted with if applicable. Also identify if this is 
a joint report and if it is, also reflect this in the Heading. 

Page 8



Sample B – award of contract 

CONTACT OFFICER:                                                         TEL. NO.

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S): 

Specify the ward(s) affected, if all wards, state this fact.

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Part 1 – Open to the public ITEM NO.

REPORT OF

                                        The Strategic Director for Place 

TO  

Procurement Board

ON

                                                        9th January 2019

TITLE:  Approval for an Exception to Contractual Standing Orders to award a 
contract for Archaeological Planning services for the ten Greater Manchester Local 
Planning Authorities          

RECOMMENDATION: 

That the Procurement Board  

(1) Approve an exception to Contractual Standing Orders in accordance with 
Paragraph 3.1 as follows:

 *The need for the goods, services or works is so urgent that the time 
needed to comply with the rules would be prejudicial to the council’s 
interests.

 *There are value for money reasons justifying an exception.
 

(2) Approve the award of the Contract for Archaeological Services for the GM 
Local Planning Authorities as detailed in the table below:

Detail required
Title/Description of Contracted 

Service/Supply/Project
Archaeological Planning Services for the Greater 

Manchester Local Planning Authorities
Name of Successful Contractor The University of Salford

Incorporated by Royal Charter – Charity Exempt 
from Registration

Supplier Registration Number
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Type of organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Choose an item.

Status of Organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Choose an item.

Page 11



Contract Value £105,000 Choose an item.
Contract Duration 12 months

Contract Start Date 01/04/2019
Contract End Date 31/03/2020

Optional Extension Period 1
Optional Extension Period 2

Who will approve each Extension 
Period? Strategic Director (extension < £150k)

Contact Officer (Name & number) Chris Findley – 016 793 3654

Lead Service Group Place
The need for the goods, services or works is so urgent that 
the time needed to comply with the rules would be prejudicial 
to the Council’s interests

x

Specialist services/supplies which are available only from 
one supplier. For example, specialist niche consultants or 
suppliers where there is a sole supplier of patented or 
proprietary articles, materials or services exclusively 
provided by a statutory undertaker or other bodies
For reasons of compatibility with existing services/products – 
for example, equipment that needs parts from its own 
manufacturer
Where any of the standing orders are inconsistent with any 
legislative requirements, in which instance the provisions of 
the appropriate legislation shall prevail
Where the Council can demonstrate that an integrated or 
strategic approach to procurement is being implemented and 
there is a requirement to align services or contracts to co-
terminus end dates
There are value for money reasons justifying a CSO 
Exception

x

School Governors: in relation to the Local Management of 
Schools (LMS), where schools have adopted their own 
standing orders
The shared legal service, in respect of the appointment of 
counsel

Reason for CSO Exception
(select all that apply)

Strategic Director of CHSC: contracts for the provision of 
personal care services or facilities pursuant to the National 
Health Service and Community Care Act 1990

Funding Source Choose an item.

(3) Note that prior to the end of the period of time covered by the exception as 
indicated in 2 above, the Strategic Director will determine whether the service is 
to be decommissioned or, in consultation with the Corporate  Procurement 
Team, will agree to undertake a compliant procurement process to re-let the 
contract by the end of the exception period.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  

The purpose of this report is to seek request an exception to Contractual Standing 
Orders to approve the award of a contract for Archaeological Planning Services for 
the Greater Manchester Local Planning Authorities

Page 12



BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:

Previous reports to Procurement Board

GMAAS summary of the last year’s activity

KEY DECISION: 

No 

DETAILS: 

The Greater Manchester Archaeological Service is one of three “Planning Units”, 
providing direct services to the ten GM districts. The others are the GM Ecological 
service, which is hosted by Tameside MBC and is therefore an “in house” service, 
and the GM Waste and Minerals Service which is hosted by Salford CC and is 
currently part of the Urban Vision arrangements (and will return to Salford CC when 
the contract ends in February 2020). The only reason that the GMAAS is subject to 
market testing is that it had been hosted by Manchester University since its creation 
by the former GM Council, and when that University decided not to continue with it 
its transfer to Salford University had to be subject to procurement arrangements. 

Procurement Board is requested to agree the extension to the Contract for a further 
12 months.  The Greater Manchester Archaeological Advisory Service (GMAAS) has 
been established at Salford University for six years.  The Unit has provided support 
to the Greater Manchester Local Planning Authorities (LPAs) in line with the Service 
Level Agreement and has performed to a high standard. Since the contract was 
awarded AGMA has reduced funding for this service, and agreement has previously 
been reached with the University of Salford to continue within this reduced budget.   
During the last 2 years the extent of development activity across Greater Manchester 
– focussed on Manchester/Salford but now extending to other districts – has placed 
much greater pressure on the service.  The University is facing a budget deficit on 
the service during its financial year (which ends end of July 2019). This will be dealt 
with as a separate issue through discussion with the Combined Authority during the 
first part of 2019.

The service is located locally and provides a high level of service at a reasonable     
cost. The service had previously been with Manchester University, who took a view 
that it did not fit with their academic direction of travel.  The service was marketed in 
2012. There were three bidders, two from the south of England, and Salford 
University. The service has integrated well into Salford University, and has a high 
profile within Greater Manchester and beyond. We are considering a further market 
test during 2019 to establish whether the interest in providing a service remains as 
limited as it was during 2012, and whether there is a case which can be justified in 
procurement terms for not going to the market in the short/medium term. 

The GMAAS undertakes work across all 10 LPAs and satisfaction with the service is 
high.  Additionally, given the location of the GMAAS within the wider archaeological 
setting in the University of Salford, the unit has participated in significant levels of 
community engagement, and offers significant social value. For example, working 

Page 13



with Network Rail and TfGM there is a high profile exhibition on Salford’s history and 
archaeology located at Salford Central station, community open days at digs are run, 
and there has been high profile publicity to archaeology in Greater Manchester and 
Salford (so for example the archaeology of New Bailey prison in Salford features in a 
programme on BBC 4 on November 28th). This is all added value, not covered by the 
budget provided to the service and has been enabled by the co-location and the 
expertise of the staff involved.

The current extension period ends at the end of March 2019. There is therefore not 
time to go out to the market to test the market again before that date. The service 
currently provides excellent value for money, to the extent that the service is 
currently operating at a loss. Development activity across Greater Manchester has 
increased significantly over the last few years, and the GMAAS has had to respond 
to an ever increasing number and complexity of planning applications, with no 
increase in budget provision. The budget loss to Salford University will have to be 
addressed this year, and that will be subject of a separate discussion through the 
CA.

When the service was previously tested with the market, Salford University was the 
only supplier outside the south of England interested in hosting the GMAAS. The 
workload is intensive and continuous, and relies on a great deal of local knowledge 
and experience. The service utilises extensive data bases which are continuously 
updated. In effect Salford University is a source of local expertise, and there is a 
synergy between the service undertaken for the ten GM Authorities, the academic 
courses developed and run by the University, and the commercial archaeological 
services which the University provides and which support the other archaeological 
work. 

The work of GMAAS is overseen by the GM Planning Officers Group, and the Chair 
of that group (Chris Findley) and the CA Strategic Planning Manager meet the 
GMAAS leads to discuss performance and issues on a regular basis. Attached is the 
GMAAS’s summary of the last year’s activity and performance.

The intention will be that the contract will be extended to the end of March 2020, and 
that during 2019 we undertake a market testing exercise to ascertain if there is 
serious interest in running an effective service from other parties. Evidence from the 
last market testing was that interest was limited, and should that interest exist we 
would need to be assured that the service could be provided to the high standards 
we have come to expect from the local service.

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 

The service supports the development management function of all 10 GM 
Authorities. The Authorities consult the service on all major planning applications 
which are likely to have an impact on matters of archaeological interest, most 
commonly leading to pre-commencement conditions relating to archaeology. The 
service also has a role in plan making and heritage interpretation, more important 
now for Salford when we no longer have any specialist in-house expertise.

Page 14



EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:-  

N/A

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  

Archaeological records for the whole of Greater Manchester are held by the 
University of Salford Archaeological Service, and we rely on it for its expertise in 
supporting our statutory planning functions. Without the support it provides, the 10 
authorities would be at risk of not meeting their statutory obligations, and potentially 
at risk of judicial challenges on planning decisions

SOURCE OF FUNDING:   

The service is funded through the Greater Manchester budget, and is secure 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Tony Hatton, Principal Solicitor, tel. 219 6323

Whilst extending an existing public contract is possible, when commissioning 
contracts for the procurement of goods, services or works the Council must comply 
with the requirements of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 (PCR) which require 
that contracting authorities treat any candidates equally and in a non-discriminatory 
way and act in a transparent manner, and its own Contractual Standing Orders 
(CSO’s) and Financial Regulations, failing which a decision may be subject to 
challenge.

Whilst exceptions to CSO’s may be authorised by a decision notice from 
Procurement Board, as detailed in section 3 of Part 5 of the Constitution there is still 
a risk of challenge from aggrieved providers if the usual tender process has not been 
followed. The risk of challenge increases in tandem with the value and proposed 
length of the contract or extension. In this instance, as noted in the report, the value 
of the proposed extension is low, with a twelve month term, and the Council is not 
commissioning a service which may be readily provided by a number of suppliers in 
the marketplace, as the current arrangement is a relatively specialist and bespoke 
one, developed over several years of partnership working with the University, to 
assist AGMA authorities in their compliance with statutory planning obligations and 
functions.

Bearing in mind that the Council is under a best value duty to carry out its functions 
economically, efficiently and effectively with the objective to achieve value for money 
in all public procurement, it would be argued that running a full procurement exercise 
at this stage will not achieve value for money for the reasons presented. 

In addition, in order to mitigate any risk it could be argued that these proposals are 
merely a delay in the competitive process, not avoidance, whilst the Council looks to 
undertake a market testing exercise. The extension with the existing provider with 
proven ability to meet the requirements of the AGMA authorities would be argued to 
be more cost effective and efficient under the circumstances.

The risk of any challenge in this instance could therefore be regarded as extremely 
low.

Page 15



FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by:  Martin Anglesey

Salford, along with the other Greater Manchester authorities, contributes towards the 
costs of the Archaeological Planning Service.  The cost of this contribution is built 
into current budget estimates.

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Deborah Derbyshire x 6244

The constitution allows Procurement Board to approve exceptions to Contractual
Standing Orders for reasons outlined within the above report. As the exception is for 
a one year period with a cost to Salford of £10,500 and Salford are acting as the lead 
Authority for the other nine AGMA Authorities.  There is always a risk of a challenge 
by an aggrieved provider when contracts are not openly advertised but for this type 
of service a challenge is relatively low, as this type of work is limited to the number of 
providers.  The AGMA Authorities are satisfied with this arrangement and due to the 
extensive research and the good working partnership of Salford University by 
appointing a new provider it may cost the Authorities more in the long term. During 
the term of the contract procurement will work with the department to carry out a full 
market research to see if there has been any changes to market and to make an 
informed decision for future procurement activity.

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: N/A 

CONTACT OFFICER: Chris Findley                                                               TEL. 
NO. 0161 793 3654

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S): All Wards

Page 16



Part 1 – Open to the public ITEM NO.

REPORT OF
The Strategic Director Place

TO
Procurement Board

ON
8th January 2020

TITLE: Approval to go out to competition for the appointment of a managing agent 
for 2 New Bailey Square, Salford

RECOMMENDATION: 

That Procurement Board grant authority for a managing agent for 2 New Bailey 
Square, Salford to be procured in accordance with the Council’s Contractual 
Standing Orders through an open tender.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  

The Council has committed to take a 25 years lease of 2 New Bailey Square, Salford 
which will provide 10 floors of grade A office space.  The purpose of this report is to 
request approval to go out competition to identify a property managing agent who 
has the capacity and proven experience of managing multi-occupied, grade A office 
space. 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:

None – The reports approving the Council’s investment in 2 New Bailey Square were 
Part 2 reports.

KEY DECISION: No

DETAILS: 

At the Property and Regeneration Briefing on the 22nd May 2017, terms were 
approved for the City Council to enter into an Agreement for Lease followed by a 
Lease on 2 New Bailey Square as part of the wider Salford Central regeneration.  
The lease will be for a term of 25 years from completion of the building which is 
currently scheduled for July 2020.  The agreement follows the pattern adopted for 

Page 17

Agenda Item 5b



One New Bailey in that the Council takes a pre-let of the entire building with space 
then sublet to tenants.  The Council is responsible for ensuring that the building is 
managed to a standard comparable to other prestigious office buildings in the city 
centre.  To date, two tenants have committed to take leases over 6½ of the 10 floors 
whilst marketing activity continues to identify occupiers for the remaining space.

A managing agent will provide both on site services to tenants but also the 
administrative functions of billing the rent and service charge on an ongoing basis.  
The services are similar to those provided in the adjacent One New Bailey which 
continues to operate successfully.  The appointment of a managing agent in advance 
of completion of the building is crucial for both the mobilisation of the building, its 
readiness to receive already committed tenants and its attractiveness to new 
occupiers.

The fee payable to the managing agent for the provision of all services is 
recoverable from the tenants under the building service charge.  With tenants 
already committed to 6½ floors, 65% of the contract costs are already covered.  If 
the building proceeds to be fully let, there will be no financial impact on the Council 
from this contract.

Experience of managing similar properties is not available in-house therefore it is 
recommended that the Council’s requirement for these services is put out to market.

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 

Salford 2025 Regeneration
Creating prosperity in Salford

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: 

There are no equality impacts arising as a consequence of this report.

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  Low

SOURCE OF FUNDING:  

Any fees not recovered from tenants of the building through the service charge will 
be payable by the City Council.  Provision for the costs of void space in the building 
is covered by the incentive pot to be held by the Council and which will be received 
from the building owner upon lease completion, forecast to be July 2020.

Page 18



LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by:  Tony Hatton, Principal Solicitor, tel. 219 6323

When commissioning contracts for the procurement of goods, services or the 
execution of works the Council as a ‘contracting authority’ must comply with the 
Public Contract Regulations 2015 (PCR) as well as the provisions of its own 
Contractual Standing Orders (CSO’s), Financial Regulations and the duties of Best 
and Social value, failing which the award of a contract may be subject to legal 
challenge. 

The report sets out that the Council proposes to enter into a compliant procurement 
process for the appointment of a managing agent at 2 New Bailey. Undertaking a 
tender exercise in this way will give some comfort to the Council in ensuring that 
value for money is being obtained and tested, with open competition maintained. The 
carrying out of a compliant procurement exercise will ensure that the risk of 
challenge to the final award of the contract to the selected managing agent is 
minimal and that any challenge, should it materialise, is unlikely to be successful.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Chris Mee - Strategic Finance Manager 
Ext 0434

As detailed within the report, the cost of managing agent will largely be met through 
service charges to tenants payable to the Council. Provision for the cost of fees not 
recovered on assumed void space has been built into the budget projections for this 
scheme. Any variation to these assumptions will be managed as part of the overall 
lettings risk to the council through the tenant incentive pot held within the New Bailey 
reserve.  

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Heather Stanton ext. 6241

Procurement has been engaged with the Property Management Team and has 
identified a compliant route for tendering of these services.  It is expected that the 
contract will be in place before July 2020 for tendering of Property Management 
Services.

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: 

None

CONTACT OFFICER:      Steven Keigher                       TEL. NO. 779 6087

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S):  Ordsall 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



Contract Award - Fuel 

Part 1
ITEM NO.

___________________________________________________________________

REPORT OF

The Strategic Director Place

TO  

Procurement Board

ON

8th January 2020
___________________________________________________________________

TITLE:   Approval to Award the Contract for supply of liquid fuels
___________________________________________________________________

RECOMMENDATION: 

That Procurement Board  

Approve the award of the Contract for the supply of liquid fuels as detailed in the 
table below:
 

Detail required
Title/Description of Contracted 

Service/Supply/Project
Supply of liquid fuels

Name of Successful Contractor Standard Fuel
Supplier Registration Number

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)
07555993

Type of organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Private Limited Company

Status of Organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Non-SME

Contract Value £1,000,000 Per Annum (estimated average)
Contract Duration  4 years  

Contract Start Date 14/01/2020
Contract End Date 13/01/2022

Optional Extension Period 1 12 months
Optional Extension Period 2 12 months

Who will approve each Extension 
Period?

Procurement Board (extension > £150k)

Contact Officer (Name & number) Terry Dixie 1046
Environment & Community SafetyLead Service Group

 

Page 21

Agenda Item 5c



Contract Award - Fuel 

How the contract was procured?
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Framework Call-off (Mini Competition)

Framework Details (where applicable)
(Procurement Body, Framework Reference & 

Title, Start/End Dates, Hyperlink, etc.)

Yorkshire Purchasing Organisation
22/11/19 – 21/11/21

Revenue BudgetFunding Source 

___________________________________________________________________

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  

Utilising the YPO (Yorkshire Purchasing Organisation) framework agreement for the 
procurement of liquid fuels for a period of four years, following completion of the 
current YPO tender framework agreement contract November 2019.  

Procurement of a fuel contract via the YPO framework for liquid fuels, January 2020. 
A compliant competition has been undertaken to provide Salford City Council with a 
contract for liquid fuels. 
___________________________________________________________________

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:

Tender process undertaken by YPO as part of the recurring contract.

___________________________________________________________________

KEY DECISION:  

Yes 

___________________________________________________________________

DETAILS: 

1. Background,

The existing contract via the YPO framework for liquid fuels expired November 2019. 
Due to the success of the current framework YPO have conducted another 
procurement process for the supply of liquid fuels for four years which is now 
available to be utilised by Salford City Council.

The framework agreement will be utilised by all AGMA authorities and other 
associated members, therefore achieving optimum economies of scale.

YPO have conducted a procurement exercise for a framework agreement on behalf 
of all AGMA authorities and other associated members to obtain best prices.

The benefit to the Council by utilising the YPO framework agreement provides:-

Page 22



Contract Award - Fuel 

Cost reduction through time and manpower to undertake procurement exercise;
Approach in line with government best practice and EU legislation;
Benefit from the category management expertise of YPO;
Small savings expected as a result (dependent of future market).

Cost of fuel has reduced slightly recently, when compared between current prices 
and that of 12 months previous. This is not expected to change but is determined by 
market pressures, as the cost for fuel is managed on a weekly basis, and is also 
affected by volume usage. There is a small saving by the award of this contract 
which is £1,800.00 for Diesel, and petrol virtually remains the same.

2. The Procurement Process 

The opportunity was advertised in the OJEU by using the open procedure for a total 
of four years.  This will be for an initial two year period with the option to extend by a 
further two years, 2 x 12 months extensions by utilising the direct award process or 
by mini competition.

The preferred option was for a mini competition process therefore all five successful 
companies from the framework were invited to submit a bid.

Following on from customer research that was carried out by YPO the results 
identified that customers were focused towards a high price ratio therefore the split 
was 80% cost and 20% quality to focus on achieving the lowest price possible,

The tender was evaluated by YPO personnel using a process of division of duty to 
ensure tenders were evaluated fairly.

Standard Fuel achieved a total of 94.60% for the whole of their submission achieving 
7% more than the second company.
As Standard Fuel was the lowest price submission therefore it was also, the most 
economically advantages tender.

The contract duration will be from 14th January 2020 to 13th January 2022 with two x 
12 month extensions subject to the supplier’s satisfactory performance.

YPO will review all KPIs during supplier review meetings. KPIs will include: number 
of complaints, OTIF deliveries, customer issues log and any other performance 
indicators identified from authorities using the framework. 

The extension to the contract will be determined in collaboration with YPO and 
customers during 2021.

.

3 Social Value 

Page 23



Contract Award - Fuel 

Standard Fuels is based in a variety of locations across the UK.  The main depot 
serving Salford is in Liverpool.  

Due to the framework being for the whole of the northwest the social value element 
mainly focused on the environmental factors and as follows:-

To reduce carbon, Standard Fuel have a number of policies in place which are 
aligned with our ISO 14001:2015 accreditation. We endeavour to keep all of our 
vehicles under 5 years old so the latest fuel saving and emissions reducing vehicles 
are in use. All of our current fleet with the exception of 1 are E6 vehicles. This linked 
with telematic monitoring ensure the lowest emissions possible out of our fleet. 
There are similar procedures in place for company car users where fuel usage is 
monitored against mileage.

We have an environmental policy which is updated and renewed regularly, signed-off 
by senior management and distributed throughout the company. This is an integral 
part of our ISO 14001:2015 accreditation.

We are proud to have one of the newest fleet in our industry which helps to reduce 
emissions and continues to improve with the latest regulatory changes

Standard Fuels are committed to reducing paper waste and are able to product 
100% of invoices electronically. Not only does this reduce paper waste, it also 
reduces the environmental cost of delivery of said items. We are looking to roll-out 
digital handheld devices for our trucks which will further reduce our delivery ticket 
paper used by 2/3. There will also be no printing costs and delivery of said delivery 
tickets/notes once this has been rolled-out across the fleet.

__________________________________________________________________

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: Procurement, Environment, 
___________________________________________________________________

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: 

Not Applicable.
___________________________________________________________________

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  
Level of risk is low. The risk is that should this not be approved then spend would be 
incurred outside of a formal contractual arrangement. 
___________________________________________________________________

SOURCE OF FUNDING:   Revenue Budget
___________________________________________________________________

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Submitted by: Tony Hatton, Principal Solicitor, tel. 219 6323

Page 24



Contract Award - Fuel 

When commissioning contracts for the provision of goods, services or the execution 
of works, the Council must comply with the provisions of the Public Contracts 
Regulations 2015 (the Regulations) which require that contracting authorities treat 
candidates equally and in a non-discriminatory way and act in a transparent manner. 
In addition, the Council is required to comply with the requirements of its own 
Contractual Standing Orders (CSO’s), failing which the award of a contract may be 
subject to legal challenge.  

The Council can comply with the requirements of the Regulations by carrying out its 
own procurement exercise or relying upon another contracting authority's compliant 
procurement exercise. In that regard, contracting authorities may procure goods, 
works or services through a ‘central purchasing body’ (and are deemed to have 
complied with the Regulations to the extent that the central purchasing body has). 
The definition of ‘central purchasing body’ includes an authority that concludes 
framework agreements for works, goods or services intended for one or more 
contracting authorities, here the YPO.

The proposed award of the contract follows a tender exercise by mini competition in 
accordance with the YPO framework agreement for the procurement of liquid fuels 
and will commit the Council to a contract for a period of up to four years (2 +1 + 1). 
The YPO arrangement is a fully compliant framework from a legislative perspective 
available for the Council (and other local authorities) to use.

The purpose of a framework agreement is to select through a 
procurement/evaluation process a number of providers who can meet the service 
requirements of the Council, as and when those services are required. If they are 
required then the Council can call off the goods/services from one or more of the 
providers who have been selected to be on the Framework and this may be through 
any number of ways (usually by way of mini-competition as here) depending on the 
circumstances. A contract will then be formed between the Council and the chosen 
provider/s. The procurement procedures set out therefore appear robust and 
compliant with the requirements of the Council’s CSO’s and public procurement 
legislation.

The Council’s Constitution sets out in Contractual Standing Orders at Part 5, 
paragraph 2.3, that as the value of the contract is over £1,000,000, Procurement 
Board should recommend the award of the contract to the City Mayor who can then 
take the decision.

Legal Services will assist with preparing any contractual documentation upon receipt 
of instructions to ensure the Council’s position is protected. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Submitted by:  Alison Woods, Finance Officer Ext.1135

Submitted by:  Alison Woods, Finance Officer, Tel. 925 1135

Date : 26th November 2019 

Page 25



Contract Award - Fuel 

Appropriate revenue budgets are in place for the purchase of the fuel and all related 
expenditure is recovered via charges to individual customers.  Any potential cost 
savings to internal and external customers will be dependent on future reductions in 
market prices.

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Submitted by:  Deborah Derbyshire 6244

The opportunity was advertised in the OJEU and YPO’s advertising tool.  Therefore 
this complies with the European Procurement Contract Regulations and Salford City 
Councils standing orders. 
___________________________________________________________________

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: None.
___________________________________________________________________

CONTACT OFFICER: Terry Dixie                        TEL. NO. 0161 925 1046
___________________________________________________________________

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S): All.
___________________________________________________________________

Page 26



Document is Restricted

Page 27

Agenda Item 8a
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held on 4 December 2019
	5a Request for Approval - Award of Contract - Greater Manchester Archaeology Services
	05(a) - Background report

	5b Request to go out to Competition - Appointment of a Managing Agent for 2 New Bailey Square
	5c Request for Approval - Award of Contract - Supply of Liquid Fuels
	8a Insurance Policy & Cover Renewals

